Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Lumax Cornaglia Auto Technologies Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Lumax Cornaglia Auto Technologies Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in

India,

of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and total comprehensive income

(comprising of profit and other comprehensive loss), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then

ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board’s Report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information

and, in

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial

statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

5.

7.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

8.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
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conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e LEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

11.

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

12.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, were audited by another firm
of chartered accountants under the Act who, vide their report dated May 23, 2024, expressed an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

112

14.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in paragraph 14(h)(vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made
to our remarks in paragraph 14(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 14(h)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A7,
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 35(b) to the financial statements.

The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2025 under the applicable
law or Indian Accounting Standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contract. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2025.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
Note 42(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
Note 42(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year is in compliance with Section 123 of
the Act.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software

for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
that has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except
that: (a) the audit log at the application level is not maintained in case of modification by certain
users with specific access; and (b) no audit trail has been enabled at the database level. During the
course of performing our procedures except the aforesaid instances, we did not notice any instance
of audit trail feature being tampered with. Further, the audit trail, to the extent maintained in the
prior year, has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.
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15. The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public companies.
Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

/

Divyank Goel

Partner

Membership Number: 513979
UDIN: 25513979BMUKTV2010

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 12, 2025
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Lumax
Cornaglia Auto Technologies Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and
both issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
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company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

/

Divyank Goel

Partner

Membership Number: 513979
UDIN: 25513979BMUKTV2010

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 12, 2025
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the books
of account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we report that:

i (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

ii. (a)
(b)

iii. (a)

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets,

The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

The Company does not own any immovable properties (other than properties where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) (Refer Note 3(a)
to the financial statements). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
Use assets) and Intangible Assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the
revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change,
if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or Intangible Assets does not arise.

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016)
(formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made
thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has
appropriately disclosed the details in the financial statements does not arise.

The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification
by Management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as
compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory and have
been appropriately dealt with in the books of account,

During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores,
in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed
quarterly returns or statements with such banks, which are in agreement with the unaudited
books of account. However, the Company has not filed return or statements for the quarter ended
March 31, 2025 with the banks and accordingly, we are unable to comment on such
reconciliations as required by clause 3(ii)(b).

The Company has made investments in various mutunal fund schemes and granted loans to
various employees during the year. The Company has not stood guarantee or provided security
to any companies / firms / Limited Liability Partnerships/ other parties. The aggregate amount
during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such loans are
as per the table given below:
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(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Loans Advances in nature
of loans
Aggregate amount granted/ provided during
the year
- Others | 15.51 Nil
| Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date | !
in respect of the above case
- Others 7.34 Nil i

Also, refer Note 8 to the financial statements.

(b) In respect of the aforesaid investments and loans, the terms and conditions under which such

()

loans were granted/investments were made are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

Inrespect of the loans, the schedule of repayment of principal has been stipulated, and the parties
are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated.

(d) Inrespect of the loans/advances in nature of loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more

(e)

®

iv.

vii. (a)

than ninety days.

There were no loans /advances in nature of loans which have fallen due during the year and were
renewed/extended. Further, no fresh loans were granted to same parties to settle the existing
overdue loans/advances in nature of loan.

There were no loans/ advances in nature of loans which were granted during the year, including
to promoters/ related parties that were repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment.

In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of the investments made. The Company has not granted any loans or made
any investments or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under Sections 185.
Therefore, the reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order to that extent is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits referred
in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to
maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We
have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in
respect of goods and services tax, duty of customs and income taxes, though there has been a
slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, cess and other statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities. However, there are no arrears of statutory dues outstanding as at March
31, 2025, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(b) There are no statutory dues of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, cess which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of other statutory dues
referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2025 which have not been deposited on account of a
dispute, are as follows:
Name of | Nature | Amount Period to which | Forum where the
the statute | of dues | Demanded the amount | dispute is pending
(Rs.In Lakhs) | relates
Custom Act | Custom 5.01 2016 Commissioner of
1962 Duty Customs (Appeal)
CGST  Act, | GST 33.60 August 2017 to | Deputy Commissioner
2017 February 2020 (Appeals)
Viii. There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961.
ix. (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of

Xi.

interest to any lender during the year.

(b) On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful
Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(¢) The Company has not obtained any term loans during the year ended March 31, 2025 and there
was no unutilized balance of term loan obtained in earlier years as on April 1, 2024. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been utilised for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across
any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section 143(12)




Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Lumax Cornaglia
Auto Technologies Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025

Page 4 of 5

(c)

xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

xvi. (a)

(b)

()

(d)

Xvil.

Xviii.

XIX.

of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and as represented to us by
the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the
Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related
Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act.

In our opinion, the Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have
an internal audit system as per provisions of the Act.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of
Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the
year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. Accordingly, the reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we noted no issues,
objections or concerns raised by the outgoing statutory auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is

F—
?TT&“;;?\\\
Sog el

2.

o2
IR LTS AT g
2 270 ;L--“‘/z.‘/

_'-IJH.W




Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Lumax Cornaglia
Auto Technologies Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025
Page5o0f5

based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, as at balance sheet date, the Company does not have
any amount remaining unspent under Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not undertaken any ongoing projects in pursuance of its Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included
in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Divydnk Goel

Partner

Membership Number: 513979
UDIN: 25513979BMUKTV2010

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 12, 2025



Lumax Cornaglia Auto Technologies Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U31908DL2007PTC164757)

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Notes As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
ASSETS T - T -
. Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3(a) 5,301.48 5,338.18
Right-of-use assets 5 3,409.80 3,355,256
Capital work-in-progress 3 (b) 590 178.78
Intangible assets 4 16.85 25.02
Financial assets
- Loans 8 0.66 -
- Other financial assets 9 611.68 241.35
Non current tax assets (net) 6 24,30 22,16
Other non-current assets 10 18.38 6.99
Total non-current assets [0} 9,389.05 9,167.73
Il. Current assets
Inventories 11 1,240.45 1,273.30
Financial assets
- Investments 7 1,976.63 -
- Trade receivables 12 2,255.43 147086
- Cash and cash equivalents 13 184 .01 524.22
- Other bank balances 14 - 1,100 00
- Loans 8 716 0.93
- Other financial assets 9 47.38 73.02
Other current assets 10 206.01 352.70
Total current assets (n 5,917.07 4,795.03
Total assets {1+11) 15,306.12 13,962.76
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1.  Equity
Equity share capital 15 683.76 683.76
Other equity 16 7.932.74 6,604.03
Total equity (1) 8,616.50 7,287.79
Liabilities
.  Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
-Borrowings 17 0.26 14.46
- Lease liabilities 18 3,363.40 3,231.21
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 23 192.02 216.64
Total non-current liabilities (i) 3,555.68 3,462.31
. Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 17 775 8547
- Lease liabilities 18 350.64 248.43
- Trade payables 21
- total outstanding dues of micro and smali enterprises 70.74 86.88
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and
small enterprises 2,367 91 2,057 47
- Other financial liabilities 22 134.74 44513
Provisions - empioyee benefit obligations 19 84.97 52,62
Other current liabilities 20 11718 236.66
Total current liabilities () 3,133.94 3,212.66
Total liabilities (I+01) 6,689.62 6,674.97
Total equity and liabilities (1+11+111) 15,306.12 13,962.76

Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No.: 012754N/N500016

/

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors \
Lumax Cornaglia Auto Technologies Private Limited

DivyanK Goel
Partner
Membership No. 513979

Director
DIN: 08705643

Place : Gurugram
Date : May 12, 2025

Place : Gurugram
Date : May 12, 2025




Lumax Cornaglia Auto Technologies Private Limited
{Company Identification No : U31908DL2007PTC164757)

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Particulars Note For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
S March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income - -
1 Revenue from operations 24 16,723.47 15,732.81
Il Other income 25 473.99 85.86
Il Total income (I1+I1) 17,197.46 15,818.67
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 26 9,940 41 9,616.99
Changes in inventories of work in progress and finished goods 27 52.15 (59.76)
Employee benefits expense 28 1,552.91 1,369.72
Depreciation and amortisation expense 30 1,050.36 850.91
Other expenses 31 1,910.56 2,042 86
Finance costs 29 294.53 295.75
IV Total expenses 14,800.92 14,116.47
V  Profit before tax (llI-IV) 2,396.54 1,702.20
Income tax expense:
Current tax 23 643.02 448 10
Deferred tax 23 (23.36) (12.48)
VI Total tax expense 619.66 435.62
VIl Profit for the year (V-V1) 1,776.88 1,266.58
Other comprehensive income
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation 34 (4.99) 2.87
- Income tax impact 1.26 (0.72)
VIl Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax (3.73) 215
IX Total comprehensive income for the year 1,773.15 1,268.73
X Earnings per share (per share of face value INR 10 each) :
-Basic earnings per equity share (in Rs.) 32 2599 18.52
-Diluted earnings per equity share (in Rs.) 32 25.99 18.52

Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

The above Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration No.: 012754N/N500016 Lumax Cornaglia Auto Technologies Private Limited i

|

{ RO |

Divyank Goel Anw \.ﬂkaL Marwah
Partner Chaierfian Director

Membership No. 513979 DIN: 00004993 DIN: 08705643

Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram
Date : May 12, 2025 Date : May 12, 2025




Lumax Cornaglia Auto Technologies Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U31908DL2007PTC164757)

Statement of cash flows for year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit before tax 2,396.54 1,702.20
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,050.36 850.91
Profit on sale of Property, plant and equipment - -
Liabilities/provisions no longer required, written back (1.02) (10.94)
Unrealised exchange Loss/ (gain) (3.86) 4,07
Interest income (58.91) (45.57)
Interest expenses 298453 295.75
;Gain on Current investments (28.32) -
Operating profit before working capital changes 3,649.32 2,796.42
Movements in working capital :

Decrease/ (Increase) in trade receivables (781.98) 457 64
Increase in loans and other financial assets (363.65) (81.89)
Decrease/ (Increase) in other assets 146.69 (151.25)
Decrease in inventories 32.85 283.17
Increase in trade payables 296.59 48562
Decrease in other financial liabilities (36.68) (79.07)
Decrease in liabilities and provisions (92.11) -
Cash generated from operations [ 2,851.03 3,720.64 |
Taxes paid | (645.16) (424.07)

Net cash generated from operating activities (A) | 2,205.87 | 3,296.57

|
Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Payments for Property, plant and equipment (including capital work-in-progress and capital advances) (651.30) (1,604.53)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 17.35 -
Payments for current investments (Net} (4,059.99)

Sale of current investments (Net) | 2,111.68 | -
iPayment in respect of right of use assets registration charges - (37.24)'
Redemption of/ (Investment in) bank deposits (Net) 1,100.00 (900.00)
Interest received ' 69.31 36.74
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (1,412.95) (2,505.03)

|Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from long term borrowings - 12.30 |
Repayment of long term borrowings (91.92) (153.41)
Proceeds from short term borrowings (net) - (40.64)
Dividend paid (444 .44)

Interest paid (295.62) (296 28)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (301.15) (274.98)
'Net cash generated from financing activities (C) | (1,133.13) (753.01)
i— T - T | i

INet (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (340.21) 38.53
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year | 524.22 | 485.69 |
|Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year | 184.01 | 524.22 |

!Non-cash investing activities |
lﬁ:quisition of Right-of-use assets | 537.22 37.24 |




(Company Identification No : U31908DL2007PTC164757)

Statement of cash flows for year ended March 31, 2025

All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated
i T

For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended |
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand -
Balance with banks

- in current accounts 134.01 524.22
- On cash credit account = -
| - in Deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less 50.00 -
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 13) | 184.01 52422

Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date.

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration No.: 012754N/N500016 Lumax Cornaglia Auto Technologies Private Limited f
/ w \ l /
N /
I o\ WL /

/
Divyank Goel Anmol Jainr” : Vikas Marwah
Partner Clr:}'n{rf ' Director
Membership No. 513979 DIN: 00004993 DIN: 08705643

Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram
Date : May 12, 2025 Date : May 12, 2025




Lumax Cornaglia Auto Technologies Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U31908DL2007PTC164757)

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

A. Equity share capital

Particulars il ] e e e Notes f Amount|
As at April 01, 2023 683.76
Changes in equity share capital -

As at March 31, 2024 15 683.76
As at April 01, 2024 683.76
Changes in equity share capital -

As at March 31, 2025 15 683.76

B. Other equity

Other Equity | Total Equity |
. Total Reserves |
Retained Securities and Surplus
Eamnings Premlum (z)rp | (1+2) .
As at April 1, 2023 o ] 433754 997.76 5,335.30 5,335.30
Add: Profit for the year 1,266 58 - | 1,266 58 1,266 58
(Add: Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (net of tax) | 2.15 - 215 2.15 |
As at March 31, 2024 5,606.27 997.76 6,604.03 6,604.03 |
|Add: Profit for the year 1,776.88 - 1,776.88 1,776.88
;Add; Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (net of tax) (3.73) - (3.73) (3.73)
|Less: Dividend Paid (444.44) = (444.44) (444 .44)
As at March 31, 2025 | 6,934.98 997.76 7,932.74 | 7,932.74
Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.
The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration No.: 012754N/N500016 Lumax Cornaglia Auto Technologies Private Limited
/ \
[ v
Divyank Goel Anmol Jajp Vikas Marwah
Partner Chgjipmﬁ ! Director
Membership No. 513979 DIN: 00004993 DIN: 08705643
Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram

Date : May 12, 2025 Date : May 12, 2025




Lumax Cornaglia Auto Technologies Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

CIN:

U31908DL2007PTC164757

1.

2A.

2.1.

Corporate information

Lumax Cornaglia Auto Technologies Private Limited is a private limited company incorporated on June 14, 2014. The
Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and supply of Air Intake Systems (AIS), Urea tank
and plastic granules for automobiles. It is a subsidiary company of Lumax Auto Technologies Limited. The registered
office of the Company is 274 Floor, Harbans Bhawan-II, Commercial Complex, Nangal Raya, New Delhi - 110046,
India.

Material accounting policies
Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following:
e  Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value

o Defined benefit obligations- plan assets measured at fair value.

New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 9 September 2024 and 28 September 2024 notified the

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024 and Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Third Amendment Rules, 2024, respectively, which amended/ notified certain accounting standards (as
mentioned below), and are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024:

s Insurance contracts - Ind AS 117; and
* Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback ~ Amendments to Ind AS 116

These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

2.3. Critical estimates and use of judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will likely differ
from the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting policies.
This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items
which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to final outcomes deviating from estimates and assumptions
made. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements. In addition, this note
also explains where there have been actual adjustments this year as a result of changes to previous estimates.

The areas involving critical estimates and judgements are:

- Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment— Note 3
- Estimated useful life of intangible assets— Note 4

- Estimation for contingencies — Note 35(b)

- Determination of lease term — Note 5

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors
including expectation of future events that might have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.




Lumax Cornaglia Auto Technologies Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN: U31908DL2007PTC164757

(a)

(b)

(o)

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

Segment Reporting

The board of directors of Lumax Cornaglia Auto Technologies Private Limited has appointed a strategic steering
committee which assesses the financial performance and position of the group, and makes strategic decisions. The
steering committee, which has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker, consists of the chief
executive officer, the chief financial officer and the manager for corporate planning. See note 43 for segment
information presented

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentational currency

Items included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian
rupee (INR), which is Lumax Cornaglia Auto Technologies Private Limited’s functional and presentation.

currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of
the fair value gain or loss, and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments classified
as at FVOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(d) Property, plant and equipment (including CWIP)

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All
other repair and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

The asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
profit or loss within other income/other expense, as appropriate.

(i) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the assets, net of their residual values,
over their estimated useful lives as follows:




Lumax Cornaglia Auto Technologies Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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Particulars Useful lives as per Useful lives estimated

Schedule IT by the management (in
years)

Computers 3 3

Office equipment 5 5

Furniture and fixtures 10 10

Plant and equipment 15 9-21 years

Vehicles 8 5

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's expert which are
higher than those specified by Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets.
The residual values are not more than 2% of the original cost of the asset.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their useful life or the lease term, unless the entity
expects to use the assets beyond the lease term.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the
end of each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. In particular, the Company considers the impact
of health, safety and environment legislation in its assessment of expected useful lives and estimated residual values.

(ii) Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the
statement of profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful life of intangible assets are assessed as finite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired. The amortization period and amortization method of
the intangible asset with a useful finite life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the assets are
considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another assets.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon de-recognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Amortisation method and useful lives

The Company amortises intangible assets with a finite life using the straight-line method over the following periods:

Intangible Assets Estimated Useful Life (Years)

Computer Software Over the estimated economic useful lives of 4 years

(e) Leases
The Company leases solar power plants and buildings. Rental Contracts are typically made for fixed periods of two
years to five years for solar power plants and fifteen years for buildings, but might have extension options as disclosed
in Note 5 (iv) to the financial statements.
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As alessor

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets might not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for the leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset if similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company:

o Where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted
to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received.

. Uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
Company, which does not have recent third-party financing.

° Makes adjustments specific to the lease, for example, term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing or market
data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the company use that rate as a starting point to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated
over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets aare recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less,
without a purchase option.

As a lessee

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

° variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the company under residual value guarantees

D the exercise price of a purchase option if the company is reasonably certain to exercise that option,

. lease payments to be made under an extension option if the reasonably certain to exercise the option, and

) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the company exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Variable lease payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that
triggers those payments occurs.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
any initial direct costs

restoration costs.
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Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognized as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the company will comply with all attached conditions. Note 25 provides further information on
how the company accounts for government grants.

Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the

end of the reporting period in the countries where the company operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The group measures its tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending
on which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However,

deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is
also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss) and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are

expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is

settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(h) Inventories

Raw materials and stores, work in progress, traded and finished goods

Assigning costs to inventories:

The costs of individual items of inventory are determined on a first-in first-out basis. Volume rebates or discounts are
taken into account when estimating the cost of inventory if it is probable that they have been earned and will take
effect.

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of raw materials and stock-in-trade comprises cost of purchases. Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure,
the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include all other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost includes the transfer from equity of
any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges relating to purchases of raw material but

excludes borrowing costs. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
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completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Financial Assets

(i) Classification of financial assets at amortised cost

The company classifies its financial assets at amortised cost only if both of the following criteria are met:
o The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
e The contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and Interest.

Financial assets classified at amortised cost comprise trade receivables and loans.
(ii) Classification of financial assets at fair vale through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) Comprise:

eEquity securities (listed and unlisted) which are not held for trading, and for which the company has irrevocably
elected at initial recognition to recognise changes in fair value through OCI rather than profit or loss. These are
strategic investments and the company considers this classification to be more relevant.

®Debt Securities where the contractual cash flows are solely principal and interest and the objective of the company
business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

There are currently no debt securities which are carried at FVOCI

(iii) Classification of financial assets at fair vale through profit or loss :

The company classifies the following financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

eDebt investment (bonds,debtenture and mutual fund) that do not qualify for measurement at either amortised cost
or FVOCI.

eEquity Investment that are held for trading and

eEquity Investment for which the entity has not elected to recognise fair value gains and losses through OCI

Financial assets classified at FVTPL comprise of investment in mutual fund.
(iv) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

¢ Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit
or loss)

e those to be measured at amortised cost

(v) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, being the date on which the Company
commits to purchase or sell the financial asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

(vi) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Equity Instruments

The company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the company’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the company’s right to receive
payments is established.
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Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ (losses) in
the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

(vii) Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 29 details how the company determines whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements,
because it typically controls the goods before transferring them to the customer.

(i) Sale of products
Revenue from sale of products is recognized at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the product. The normal credit term is 30 to 90 days upon delivery.

(ii) Sale of service

Revenue from sale of service is recognised in accordance with the terms of contract when the services are rendered
and the related costs are incurred.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change. Any
resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the
circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management.

(iii) Financing components

The company does not have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to
the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the group does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for a significant financing component or the time value of money.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business and reflect the company’s unconditional right to consideration (that is, payment is due only on the passage
of time).

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing
components. The company holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the company applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS 109, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Other Accounting Policies
Employee benefits

(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations
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(b)

The Company also has liabilities for earned leave that are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service. These obligations are therefore measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the appropriate market
yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit
or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional
right, at the end of the reporting period, to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

(iii) Post-employment obligations

The group operates the following post-employment schemes:

+ defined benefit plans such as gratuity, pension, post-employment medical plans
« defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Pension and gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension and gratuity plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The estimated future payments which are denominated in
a currency other than INR, are discounted using market yields determined by reference to high-quality corporate
bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating to
the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and
loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans The group pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as
per local regulations. The group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Provisions and contingent liability

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims and service warranties are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations might be small.
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the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liability

Contingent liability is:

a) a possible obligation arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or

b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

- it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or

the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in
the balance sheet.

(d) Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to owners of the group

e by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares (see note 32).

The Company does not have any dilutive potential equity shares.

(e) Dividend

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting
period.

(f) Other income

(g)

Interest Income

Interest income from financial assets at FVTPL is disclosed as interest income within other income. Interest income
on financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at FVOCI is recognised in profit or loss as part of other
income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that subsequently become credit impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss

allowance).

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are derecognised from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is extinguished,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).
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Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to
extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is

measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity
instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless, at the end of the reporting period, the group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there
is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with
the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability
as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for
issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the group prior to the end of the financial
year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Standards notified, not yet effective
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended March 31, 2025,
MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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3 (b) Capital work-in-progress

(i} The details of capital work-in-progress:

: | As at March 31, 2025 i As at March 31, 2024 |
-
5.90 | 178.78
Total 5.90 178.78

—_— e

_Cgpital work-in-progress

(ii) Aging of CWIP
As at March 31, 2025

[ Amount In capital work-in-progress for
cwiIP | Lessthan1 | |

. year | 1-2years 2-3years | More than 3 years . Total
Projects in progress - _ 5.90 ) = ) - - - ) h B 590
As at March 31, 2024 I
I Amount in capital work-in-progress for |
b r—_ — il i oLl A — .
KERs el | 1-2 years I 2-3 years | More than 3 years | Total |
| year | s N — 1L |

IProjects in progress ) 178.78 s - - ' 178.78

(iii) The projects in progress are not overdue in terms of time and cost from their original approved plan

Y * D

SrUrugram
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4 Intangible assets

Technical |
. —[ Computer Software l Know-How | Total
Gross block - | '
As at April 01, 2023 8347 | 46.30 129.77
Additions 16.18 - 16.18 |
|As at March 31, 2024 99.65 | 46.30 145.95 |
Additions 1.35 | - 1.35 |
As at March 31, 2025 101.00 | 46.30 147.30 |
Accumulated amortisation
As at April 01, 2023 66.03 46.30 112.33
Charge for the year 8.60 - 8.60
As at March 31, 2024 74.63 46.30 120.93
Charge for the year 952 - 9.52
As at March 31, 2025 84.15 46.30 130.45
Net book value
As at March 31, 2025 16.85 16.85
|As at March 31, 2024 I 2502 | - 25.02

5 Right-of-use assets
(i) Amount recognised balance sheet

=

The balance sheet shows the following amount relating to leases

= .7 = I =
[ As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024 -‘
Right-of-use assets - - - = '
Solar power plant 444,89 - |
Building | 2,964.91 3,355.25 |
| Total == i 3,409.80 | 3,355.25 |
____ i | AsatMarch31,2025 |  AsatMarch 31,2024
Lease liabilities
Current 350.64 24843
|Non-current 3,363.40 3.231.21
| Total [ 3,714.04 | 3,479.64 |
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year were INR 537.22 (31 March 2024: INR 37.24)
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:
= _|_Solar Power Plant | Buildings I Total
Gross block |
As at April 01, 2023 145.85 4,018.30 | 4,164.15
Additions - 37.24 37.24
|Disposals (145.85)| -  (14585))
|As at March 31, 2024 I =" ] 405554 | 4,055.54
|Additions j 471.06 | 66.16 | 537.22
As at March 31, 2025 | 471.06 | 4,121.70 | 4,592.76 |
Accumulated Depreciation | |
As at April 01, 2023 | 38.88 235,16 274.04
|Depreciation charge for the year | 8.90 465.13 474.03
Disposals | (47.78) | - | (47.78)
As at March 31, 2024 | - | 700.29 | 700.29
Depreciation charge for the year | 26.17 456.50 482.67
As at March 31, 2025 | 26.17 1,156.79 | 1,182.96
|Net book value
As at March 31, 2025 444.89 2,964.91 3,409.80
As atMarch 31,2024 _ - | 3,355.25 | 3,355.25
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(ii) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

{iii)
{iv)

- T_h_e statement of profit and loss shows the following amount relating to |

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities (included in finance cost)
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss

As at March 31, 2025

48267
28543
237.89

1,005.99

| . — — | AsatMarch31,2025 | AsatMarch 31,2024 |
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets [
Solar Power Plant 26.17 8.90
Building 456.50 | 465.13 |
Total | 482.67 | 474.03 |
Solar Power Plant : Buildings Total !
Lease Liabilities B
As at April 01, 2023 118,32 3,734.37 3,852.69
Finance cost accrued during the year - 268.97 268.97
Disposals (110.80) - (110.80)
Payment of lease liabilities (7.52) (523.70) (531.22)
As at March 31, 2024 - 3,479.64 3,479.64
Additions 471.06 64.49 53555
Finance cost accrued during the year 36.01 249.42 285.43
Payment of lease liabilities (50.45) (536.13)| (586.58)
As at March 31, 2025 - 456.62 | 3,257.42 | 3,714.04 |
As at March 31,2025 B j
Current - 18.51 | 332.13 350.64
Non-current 438.11 2,925.29 | 3,363.40 |
| As at March 31, 2024 o
Current o - 248.43 | 248.43 |
Non-current - 3,231.21 | 3.231.21

As at March 31, 2024

474.03
268.97
301.14

1,044.44

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of INR 586.58 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024 INR 531.22 lakhs).

Extension and termination options : Extension and termination options are included in property lease agreements. These are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Company's operations. Extension and termination options held are exercisable only by

the Company and not by the lessor.

(v) Variable Lease Payment- The Company does not have any leases with variable lease payments.
(vi) Residual value guaranteed - There are no residual value guaranteed in the lease contracts
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6  Non current tax assets (net)

— =

Advance income tax

—_—

QOpening balance
Adjustments for tax on account of previous year
Refund received during the year
Adjustments for provision for tax for the current year
| Tax refunds/Tax paid during the year
| Net non-current tax assets”

*Advance income tax as on March 31, 2025 INR 1,115 23 lakhs (March 31, 2024 INR 885 58 lakhs)
Provision for income tax as on March 31, 2025 INR 1,090 93 lakhs (March 31, 2024 INR 863 42 lakhs)

o\ X 5/3))
o A

C”"llf: ram ¥ 2

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 -l
2216 46.19
(4.63) 056

- (13 26)

(638.39) (447.91)

645.16 436,58 |

24.30 22.16 |

——
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7 Current investments

== =
/(i) Investment in Mutual funds measured at FVTPL

As at March 31,2025 |

As at March 31, 2024

Unquoted
55,97,469.511 units (As at March 31 2024 Nil) in SBI Arbitrage Opportunities fund 1976.63 | -
Total current investment 1,976.63 | -
‘Current 1,976.63 | -
1.976.63

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investment

8 Loans

| Unsecured and considered good

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31,2024 |
|

Non-current
Loans
| Loan to Employees* 0.66 -
Total (A) 0.66
'Current
Loans |
| Loan to Employees* 7.16 0.93
| Less: Loss allowance . | - |
| |
|Total (B) [ 7.16 | 0.93 |
| | ! |
|
| Total loans carried at amortised cost (A+B) | 7.82 0.93 |
\Current 7.48 0.03 |
Mon-current - 0.66 | - |
“There are no loans and advances outslanding to promolers, directors, key managerial perso
% Other financial assels
‘ B I As atMarch 31,2025 | Asat March 31, 2024
il' ed and idered good |
|Non-current |
| Security deposits ‘ 262.17 24135
| Government grant receivable ! 349.51 -
| Total (A) [ 611.68 | 24135 |
Current [
Security Deposits - 61.24
Interest accrued but not due 1.38 11,78 |
Other financial assets 46.00 - |
| Total (B) 47.38 | 73.02
I }
Total (A+8) 659.06 | 314.37
| | |
Current 47.38 73.02
|Non-current 611.68 N 24135 |
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10 Other assets

’ As at March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024

l(Unsecu'F&E. considered good) |

Non-current |

Capital advances 18.38 6.99
Total (A) 18.38 6.99
Current

Balance with government authorities 30.83 2502
Advance to suppliers 113.65 263.38
Prepaid expenses 49.66 50.27
Other receivables 11.87 14.03
Total (B) 206.01 352.70
Total (A+B) 224.39 359.69
Current 206.01 | 352.70

Non-current 18.38 | 6.99
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11

12

a)

b)

c)

Inventories

Raw materials and components

|

2025 | 31,2024

| AsatMarch31, [ Asat MarchJ

816.19 780.60
(includes material in transit INR 249,63 lakhs (As at March 31, 2024 INR 167.57 lakhs) |
Work-in-progress [ 109.03 114.86
Finished goods 74,22 120.54
(includes sales in transit INR 30.3 lakhs (As at March 31, 2024 INR 20.8 lakhs)
Moulds 145.78 184.26
Stores and spares 95.23 73.04
Total inventories 1,240.45 1.273.30
Trade receivables

- T | AsatMarch31, | As atMarch |
| = | 2025 | 31,2024 |
Trade receivables from contract with customers — billed 2,105.81 | 1,411.04
Trade receivables from contract with customers — unbilled 96.89 6,94
Trade receivables from contract with customers — retated parties (refer note 33) 52.73 52.88
Less: Loss allowance - -
Total receivables 2,255.43 | 1,470.86 |
| Break-up for security details:
Trade receivables considered good — secured - =
| Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 2,255.43 | 1,470.86
| Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk -
!Trade receivables — credit impaired = | -
'Total 2,255.43 1,470.86
Less: Loss allowance =1 -
Total trade receivables 2,255.43 1,470.86

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Further no trade or other
receivable are due from firms or private companies in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of not more than 30-120 days.

Trade receivables Aging Schedute
As at March 31, 2025
|Particulars

Not Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment r

} Unbilied

'Less than | 6 months- |
] 6 months

1year |

1-2 years | 2-3 years [
|

| More than 3

Total W

years

[Undisputed trade receivables
(i) Considered good

I(ii) Which have significant increase in credit
In‘sk

(iii) Credit impaired - -
|Disputed trade receivables

(iv) Considered good - -

(v) Which have significant increase in credit

risk

(vi) Credit impaired - - |

96.89 @ 1,822.95 |

263.69

45.09

19.24 308 |

449 | 2,255.43

| Total 96.89 | 1,822.95 |

263.69 |

45.09

19.24 | 3.08 |

2,255.43 |

Trade receivables Aging Schedule
As at March 31, 2024

= ==

Particulars Unbilled Not Due |

' Less than | 6 months- | _
6 months |

1 year

1-2 years

| Outstanaing for following perE)d_s from due date of payment |

E———
2-3 years |

Wonthans | Tou
years I

|Undisputed trade receivables [
(i) Considered good

(i) Which have significant increase in credit = 1 -
risk | | |
(i) Credit impaired - -
Disputed trade receivables |
(iv) Considered good F =
(v) Which have significant increase in credit
risk

(vi) Credit impaired

6.94 | 1,276.36

142.47

29.31

019 | 695

8.64 1,470.86

6.94 | 1,276.36 |

142.47

29.31 |

I!i

0.19 6.95 |

8.64 1,470.86
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13 Cash and cash equivalents

As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024 ?
Balances with banks: - T T I = T |
- In current accounts 134,01 | 524.22
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 50.00 | - |
Total cash and cash equivalents - 184.01 | 524.22
There are no repalriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents at the end of reporting period and prior periods.
14 Other bank balances
| As at March 31, 2025 I. As at March 31, 2024
I —. — - | | ]| [N ==
Other bank balances: |
- Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but remaining maturity of less - 1,100.00
than twelve months

Total

1,100.00
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15 Equity Share Capital
a) Details of equity share capital:
| As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 20244.‘
| |
|Authorised equity share capital | |
179,00,000 (As at March 31, 2024: 75,00,000) equity shares of INR 10 each 750.00 750.00 |
750.00 750.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up capital |
|
68,37,574 (As at March 31, 2024: 68,37,574) equity shares of INR 10 each 683.76 683.76
683.76 683.76
b) Authorised equity share capital
I Equity Shares
| No. of shares | A
‘As at April 01, 2023 75,00,000 750.00
|Increase dunng the year | « = |
(As at March 31, 2024 | 75,00,000 | 750.00
|Increase during the year | 2 = |
As at March 31, 2025 | 75,00,000 750.00
¢) Movement in equity share capital
[ ‘Equity Shares
.| No. of shares Amount
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at April 01, 2023 | 68.37.574 | 683.76
Issued during Ihe year L =1 = |
| As at March 31, 2024 | 68.37,574 | 683.76 |
Issued during the yaar 1 = -
| As at March 31, 2025 68,37,574 | 683.76 |
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d) Termsl/ rights attached to equity shares:

Equity shares have a par value of INR 10. They entitle the holder to participate in dividends, and to share in the proceeds of winding up the company in proportion
to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

Every holder of equity shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy is entitled to one vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.

e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

[ ; [ As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 |
| Name of the shareholder | | % holding in | % holding in |
| No.ofshares | theequity | No.ofshares | theequity |
shares | | shares
Lumax Auto Technologies Limited (Holding company) I 34,18,787.00 | 50.00%  34.18.787.00 50.00%
Cornaglia Metallurgical Product India Private Limited 34,18,787.00 5000%  34,18,787.00 50.00%
f) Details of shares held by Promoters (representing fegal and beneficial ownership)
As at March 31, 2025 ) )
Name of the sharsholder | As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 |
' Equity shares of INR 10 (March 31, 2024: INR 10) each fully paid | |
|Lumax Auto Technologies Limited (Holding company) 34,18,787.00 50.00% 34,18,787.00 | 50.00%
'Cornaglia Metailurgical Product india Private Limited 34,18,787.00 50.00% 34,18,787.00 ~ 50.00%
— g —
No. of shares . No. of Shares , !
| Name of the shareholder |at the beginningl Ch:lr:se ::rnng | at the end of %st:‘:"::stal dun'/:lc':::geear |
| of year y year 9 y
| |
|Equity shares of INR 10 (March 31, 2024: INR 10) each fully paid | | '
Lumax Auto Technologies Limited (Holding company) | 34,18,787.00 - 34,18,787.00 | 50.00% | =
|Cornaglia Metallurgical Product India Private Limited 34,18,787.00 - 34,18,787.00 | 50.00% -
@) Shares held by holding company

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company are as below:

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
| | % holding in % holding in |
| Name of the shareholder |
No.ofshares | the equity No. of shares the equity
| shares — __ shares |
|Equity shares of INR 10 (March 31, 2024 INR 10) each fully paid | - | |
|Lumax Auto Technologies Limited (Holding company) | 34,18,787 | 50% 34,18,787 | 50%

h) The Holding Company does not have any equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the
period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

16 Other equity
Reconciliation of Other Equity

Retained Securities
Total
= Earnings Premium |
As at April 1, 2023 4,337.54 997.76 5,335.30
Profit for the year 1,266.58 - 1,266.58
| Other comprehensive income for the year | 2.15 . 2.15
As at March 31, 2024 5,606.27 997.76 | 6,604.03 |
iProfit for the year 1,776.88 | - 1,776.88 |
Other comprehensive income for the year (3.73) - (3.73)
Dividend Paid (444.44)| =: | (444.44)|

As at March 31, 2025 6,934.98 997.76 7.932.74 |
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16.1 Nature and purpose of reserves
a) Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has earned/incurred till date, less any transfers to general reserve, divdends or other distributions paid
to shareholders. Retained earnings include re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit
and Loss

e) Capital reserve
Capital reserve are the reserve created for gain on bargain purchase related to business combinations.

16.2 Distributions made and proposed

= | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2025 | 2024

Cash dividends on equity shares declared and paid

Final dividend for the year ended on March 31, 2024: INR 6.5 per share (March 31, 2023: INR Nil per share) 444 44 -
Interim dividend for the year ended March 31, 2025: INR Nil per share (March 31, 2024: INR Nil per share) = 1 =

— — | 444 .44 \ - -
Proposed dividends on Equity shares * |
Proposed dividend for the year ended on March 31, 2025: INR 9.5 per share (March 31, 2024: INR 6.5 per share) 649.57 444 44 |
L _ B 649.57 444.44 |
* Proposed dividends on equity shares are subject to approval at the Hhcoming annual general meeting and are not recognised as a liability as at March 31,

2025

Gurugrat
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17 Borrowings

b)

Non-current borrowings:

i

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

| Term Loans (Securéd)
Rupee term loan from banks

| Vehicle loan from banks
Total borrowings

Less: current maturity disclosed under short term borrowings*

- Rupee term loan from Banks
- Vehicle loan
Total borrowings

Total current (disclosed under short term borrowings)
Total non-current

.Aggregale secured loans

) 7472
8.01 2521
8.01 99.93

i (74.72)

(775 (10 75)
0.26 14.46
7.75 85.47
0.26 14.46
8.01 99.93

* Vehicle loan amounting INR 8.01 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: INR 2521 Lakhs) from ICICI banks Limited and interest rate 9.10% p.a. The loan is secured by
hypothecation of respective vehicle Refer note 3(a) for the disclosure of asset held under hypothecation. These loans are repayable over a period of thirty nine months

from the date of availment

Net debt reconciliation

As at March 31, 2025 [ As at March 31, 2024 |
Cash and cash equivalents 184,01 | 52422
Liquid investments 1976.63 -
Borrowings (8.01) (99.93)
Lease liabilities (3,714.04) (3,479.64)
'Net debt - (1,561.41) {3,055.35)
Current borrowings:
]
As at March 31, 2025 I As at March 31, 2024
Current Maturities of non-current borrowings o — = | '|
'Current maturity of vehicle loan (refer note above) 7.75 10.75
Current maturity of rupee term loan from banks (refer note above) - 74.72
| Total — B 7.75 85.47 |
|Aggregate Secured loan - 7.75 85.47
Lease Liabilities
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 |
— =
|Non-current .
Lease Liabilities 3,363.40 3.231.21
Total (A) 3,363.40 | 3,231.21
Current
Lease Liabilities 350.64 248.43
Total (B) 350.64 | 248.43 |
|
| | ]
3,714.04 | 3,479.64 |
| | |
Non-current 3,363.40 | 3,231.21
| Current 350.64 | 248.43 |
Provisions - employee benefit obligations
J As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Current T B T o '|
Gratuity (refer note 34) 26.47 7.04
Leave Obligation 58.50 | 45.58
Total Provisions - employee benefit obligations 84.97 | 52.62
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20 Other Current liabilities
—

2

a

iy

As at March 31, 2025 1 As at March 31, 2024
- — — == — e L — = _]
|

Statutory dues payable 100.06 92 50

Advance from customaers | 17.13 14416
|

|Other current liabilities | 117.18 236.66

Trade payables

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Current

- Trade payables : Micro and smail enterprises 7074 86 98

- Trade payables : Olhers 2,255.01 1,898.39

- Trade payables to related parties (refer note 33) 112 90 158.98
2,438 65 2,144.35 |

S — =

Payables to micro and smali enterprises 70.74 86.88

| Payables to creditors others than micro and small enterprises - i 2,367 91 2,057.47 |

Informalion as required to be fumished as per Seclion 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended March 31, 2025 is given
below. Dues to Micro and small enterprises have been determined fo the extent such pariies have been identified on the basis of information collected by the management

| | As at March 31, 2025 ' As at March 31, 2024

Principal and int; due there on remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accaunting year |

| The Principal amount and interest due there remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year 7074 | 86 88 [
Principal amount due (o micro and small enterprises ! - 010 |

| [ 70.74 86.98 |

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in lerms of seclion 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment
made lo the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounling year

| The amount of interes| due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid bul beyond the
|appainted day during the year) but wilhout adding Lhe interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006

f‘rm! amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounling year = |

|The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unfil such date when the inlerest due as
above are aclually paid to the small enlerprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the 010 0.10
|MSMED Acl 2006 [

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule
As at March 31, 2025

O @ for following periods from due date of pay t
Particulars Unbitled Not Due Less Total
y:ahra" ! l 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years
| Undisputed trade payables | | 1 | | - —
|(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises | | | | | I
and small enterprises 70.74 - - - . 70.74
|(ii) Total oulstanding dues of creditors olher than | ! |
micro enlerprises and small enlerprises 18195 | 1,484 62 682 15 631 | 112 | 11.76 | 2,367.91 |
|
|Disputed trade payables [ |
(i) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small | | |
enterprises . - - . - - -
(ii) Dispuled dues of creditors other than micro i | |
enlerprises and small enlerprises - - . - - | . .
Total | 181.95 1,555.36 | 682.15 | 6.31 | 1.12 | 11.76 | 2,438 65 |

&

-
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22

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

_As at March 31, 2024

] for g periods from due date of paymant B '
Particulars. Unbilled Not Dus Less than 1 12 years 23 years More tiin 3Vo4rs Total
| i b | year — |
| Undi trade | ! {
(i) Total outsianding dues of micro enterprises | | | |
and small enterprises - 86.98 - 36.98
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other lhan I | |
micro enlerprises and small enterprises 151 92 1,254 00 614 92 3021 | 102 | 530 i 2,057.37 i
Disputed trade payables | !
(i) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small |
| enterprises s - = - - =
(ii) Dispuled dues of creditors other than micro |
enlerprises and small enlerprises - - - . - -
Total 151.92 1,340.98 614.92 30.21 1.02 530 2,144.35

Other financial liabilities

T

|
As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024

Capital Creditors
Employee benefits payable

- Payable to related parties (refer note 33)*

- Payable lo employees

Unsecured deposits from customers
IInIBfB!l acerued bul nol dua

Total

" Includes amount payable lo directors for sitling fees

99 55 37217 |
| 080 .
3389 7137
0.50 0.50 |
| | 1.09 |
134.74 44543 |
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23 Income tax expense

emetewe - 1

| For the Year Ended For the Year Endad

I - —= - - I T March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

Income tax expense —‘-
Current income tax: |
Current income tax | 63839 447 91
Income tax Expense Earier year 463 0.19
Total | 643.02 | 448.10
Deferred tax : 1
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (23.36) (12.48)
income tax expense reported in the of profit and loss 619.66 435.62

(b) OCI section

Deferred tax refaled to items recognised in Other Comp Income duning the year,
| For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended |
| il - 4 — March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024 |

Tax effect on loss on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 126 (0.72)

Deferred tax charged to Other Comprehensive Income 1.26 {0.72)

(c) Reconciliation of tax exp and the ing profit multiplied by India’s ic tax rate for March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

| March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 |
'Accounting profit before income tax o 2,396.54 1.702.20
Accounting profit before income tax for discontinued operations I =R 7
Tax at the Income tax rate of 25 168% (March 31, 2024: 25 168%) 603.16 428.41
Adjustments

Permanent difference 7.10 793
Others | 477 | (0.72)|
As at the effective income tax rate of 25.66% (March 31, 2022: 25.59%) 615.03 | 435.62 |
IIncome tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 615.03 | 435.62 |

(d) [Deferred tax: S i Balance sheet st of profit and loss and OCI
As at ] As at | Forthe Year Ended For the Year Ended

| | March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 | March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
'Deferred tax assets relates to the following : N [ | | |
Impact of expenditures charged to statement of profit and loss but allowed for tax 39.36 31.48 788 3.30
purposes on payment basis | |
Deferred tax on lease liability 93475 | 87576 5899 | (93.89)
Total (A} 974.11 907.24 66.87 {80.59)
Deferred tax liability relates to the following : . |
|Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 336.40 | 312,90 | 2350 | 4411 |
|Deferred tax on Right-of-use asset (net) 814 89 801.58 13.31 (147.18)
Un-realised gain on current investments 670 - 6.70 - |
| Total (B) | 1,157.99 | 1,114.48 | 43.51 {103.07) |
Deferred tax exp Hi ) charged to of ] | (23.36) (12.48)
profit and loss

Deferred tax expense/(income) on financial assets (OCI) | 814 | 940 (126) 072
| Deferred tax expense/(income) charged to statement of - - {24.62) (11.76) |
profit and loss and OCi | ! {
!_rotal deferred tax liability (Net) 192.02 | 216.84 |
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24

24,

-

24.2

243

244

245

25

Revenue from operations

[ . = . = " T “Forthe YearEnded | For the Year Ended
i March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
[Revenue from contract with customers T
Sale of products
'Finished goods 15,5626 66 14,837.35
Sale of services
Sale of service 160.07 96.80
|Other operating revenue
Export incentives 1644 345
Scrap sale 37.62 35.02
Moulds and tool sale 982.68 760.19
Total other operating revenue 1.036.74 798.66
[Total revenue from operations 16,723.47 15,732.81
Contract balances
| =n | Forthe Year Ended | Forthe Year Ended |
| | March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advance from customers (refer note 20) 17.13 '_ 144.16 |
Timing of revenue recognition
| Forthe Year Ended | For the Year Ended |
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Goods transferred at a point in time 16,563.40 | 15,636.01
Services transferred over time 160.07 | 96.80 |
16,723.47 | 15,732.81 |

Performance obligation
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods to Llhe cuslomer and payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from
delivery.
The performance obligation is satisfied over time and payment is generally due upon completion of service as per the contract with
customers
Service performance obligation
Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
| For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue as per contracted price | 16,723.47 15,732.81
Less Adjustments - -
16,723.47 15,732.81
Revenue by location of customer
For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
| — = _March 31, 2025 !_ March 31, 2024
:Within India 16,448.28 15,376.51 |
Outside India 275.19 356.30
| Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers 16,723.47 15,732.81 |
Otherincome ~ —
| For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest income
| - On fixed deposits 55.57 ‘ 45.57
| - Others 3.34 -
iLiabiIilies/ provisions no longer required writlen back | 1.02 | 10.94 |
Net gain on foreign currency fluctations 20.55 | 16.62
Net change in fair value of investment held at FVTPL |
a) Realized Gain 1.68 |
b) Unrealized Gain 26.64
Government Grant 351,61 | -
Miscellaneous income 13.58 | 12.73
|Total 473.99 | 85.86
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26  Cost of raw materials consumed

. For the Year Ended For the Year Ended |
| March 31, 2025 ] March 31, 2024
- g ! —
Inventory at the beginning of the year 780.60 812.96
|Add: Purchases 9,305.64 8,936.02
Less: Inventory at the end of the year (816.19) (780.60)
Cost of maErials consumed B 9,270.05 | 8,968.38
Cost of moulds consumed
== For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024 |

Inventory at the beginning of the year 184.26 479.81
Add: Purchases 631.88 353.06
Less: Inventory at the end of the year (145.78) (184.26)
Cost of moulds consumed 670.36 648.61
| Total cost of materials consumed o 9,840.41 9,616.99 |
27 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods
| = For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening stock |
- Finished goods : 120.54 72.50
- Work-in progress : 114.86 | 103.14 |
| 1)
Total (A) 235.40 | 175.64 |
Closing stock I
- Finished goods 74.22 120.54
- Work-in progress 109.03 114.86 |
Total (B) 183.25 | 235.40 |
| |
Changes in inventories
- Finished goods | 46.32 (48.04)
- Work-in progress 5.83 (11.72)|
_Changes in inventories of finished | goods and work-in-progress 52.15 | (59.76)
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28 Employee benefits expense

—————— e e

i For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended

| March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

! % |
|Salaries, wages and bonus 1,375.78 | 1,181.91
|Contributions to provident and other funds (refer note 34) 44.88 | 39.03 |
1Gratuity (refer note 34) 14.76 14.89
1Staff welfare expense 117.49 133.89
Total 1,652.91 1,369.72

The Code on Social Security, 2020('Code') relating to employee benefits recived Presidential assent in September 2020.
The Code has been published in the Gazzet of India. However, the date on which the code will come into effect has not
been notified. The Company will assess the impact of Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact
in the period the code will become effective.

29 Finance costs

[ For the Year Ended For the Year Ended |

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on term loans 1.39 14.56
Interest on working capital loan 6.29 | 9.23 |
Interest on lease liabilities 285.43 268.97
Interest on statutory dues 1.32 289 |
Interest on micro and smaill enterprises 0.10 | 0.10 |
Total _ 294.53 | 295.75

30 Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended |

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
|
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer not 3a) 558.17 368.28
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer not 4) ' 9.52 8.60
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer not 5) | 482.67 | 474.03 |

Total 1,050.36 850.91
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31 Other exf
| For the Year Ended |' For the Year Ended
| March 31, 2025 l March 31, 2024
Freight and forwarding charges 191.23 227.24
Job work charges 58.50 69.72
Power and fuel 273.02 357.51
Consumption of stores and spares 118.80 98.30
Travelling and conveyance 7125 67.08
Packing material consumed 25540 23411
Rent 237.89 301.14
Legal and professional fees 102.44 112.27 |
Repairs and maintenance
- Plant and machinery 236.69 273.28
- Building 143 284
- Others 57.00 42.43
Communication cost 6.18 12.34
Bank Charges 2486 588
Design, support and testing charges 4329 39.79
Rates and taxes 17.70 37.07
Payment to auditors* 8.00 7.00
Insurance 24.26 16.81
|CSR expenditure™ 35.80 31.30
Printing and stationery 523 6.73 |
\Advertisement and sales promotion 1.94 3.09
Director’s sitting fees 4.00 2.80
Management fees - 0.23
Royalty 0.93 -
|Warranty 15.79 3.10 |
Loss on sale of property plant and equipment (net)* 249 =
Miscellaneous expenses 138.84 90.80
ITDtﬂl 1,910.56 2,042.86 |
*Payment to Auditor | ing applicable taxes) — N
T [ Forthe Year Ended | For the Year Ended |
| March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
\As Auditor: -
Statutory audit fee 7.00 7.00
Tax audit fee 1.00 =
\Total 8.00 7.00 |
**Details of CSR expenditure: . -
B B ) For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 |
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 35.57 29.75
_{b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 35.57 | 31.30 |
| (c) Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2025: L In Cash | Yet to be paid in Cash 1 Total
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - - =
' i) On purposes other than (i) above in cash 35.80 - 35.80 |
(d) Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2024: In Cash Yet to be paid in Cash Total
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - - o
ii) On purposes other than (i) above in cash 31.30 | - 31.30 |
= For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

| (e) Details related to spent / unspent obligations: March 341, 2025

i) Contribution to Public Trust I -

March 31, 2024

31.30 |

i) Contribution to Charitable Trust 35.80
| iii) Unspent amount in relation to:
Ongoing project - -
Other than ongoing project - -
|
In case of Section 135(5) Excess amount spent
. | Amount required | Amount spent during the Closing
Opening | tobespent | yearfrom Company's Balance
Balance with Company | _ Short/ (excess) with |
during the year Bank Alc
| | | Company |
(5.73)| 35.57 | 35.80 | (5.96)|
"**Loss on sale of property plant and equipment (net)
[Particutars [ e S| e ] A t |
|Gross Block Disposal N | 85.05
| Accumulated Depreciation | (65.21)
Net Block 19.84
Less: Sale Realisation K 17.35 |
|Net Loss | 2.49 |
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32 Earnings per share (EPS)

a) Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Basic and diluted EPS are same as there are no convertible financial instruments outstanding as on March 31,
2025

b) The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

. | Forthe Year Ended | Forthe Year Ended |
| March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
i B e e T - _ S =, | _ 2 |
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company 1,776.88 | 1,266 .58
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted EPS 68,37,574 68,37,574
Basic and diluted earnings per share (face value INR 10 per share, March 31, 2024 INR 10 per 25.99 18 52

share

c) There has not been any transactions involving equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these
standalone financial statements
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33 Related party disclosures:
Names of related parties and related party relationship
1 Relationship Name of Related Parties

Holding Company |Lumax Auto Technologies Limited
Enlerpri;; _h_aﬁ'\g significant influence over the Comaglia MetallurgiEalmducts India Private Limited
ICompany
Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key |Lumax Industries Limited
management personnel and/ or their relatives ‘Lumax Tours & Travels Limited
Lumax Management Services Private Limited
B Lumax Charitable Foundation - o .
Entities under common control Cor-Filters (Italy)
| - Officine Mettalurgiche G. Cornaglia SPA (italy)
Key Management Personnel i Deepak Jain (Resigned w.e f.11,11.2024)
Mr Anmol Jain- Chairman
Mr Vikas Marwah Director
Mr Pier Antonio Comaglia-Director
Mr Giovanni De Filippis - Director (Resignedw e f 11 11 2024}
Mr. Tommaso Cornaglia - Director
Mr. Pier Mario Comnaglia - Honorary President
Ir Roop Salotra - Non Execulive Directors
B o Mr_Milap Jain - Director
Chairman Ementus o ‘Mr DK Jain
Rel Party Trar ions II March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 |
(a) Officine Mettalurgiche G. Cornaglia SPA (ltaly)
Purchase of Raw materials {Inclusive of taxes) | 081 21.35
(b) Cor-Filters (ltaly) . |
Sale of finished goods (Inclusive of taxes) 12281 139,86
{ ¢ ) Lumax Auto Technologies Limited
(i) Purchase of Raw materials (Inclusive of taxes) 513.84 €97.20|
(ii) Sales of finished goods (Inclusive of taxes) - 1.97
(i) Divdend paid 222 22 -
{d) Lumax Industries Limited
Rent paid 033 -
(e) Lumax Tours & Travels Limited |
Travelling Expenses (Inclusive of taxes) 4070 42.99
{f} Lumax Charitable Foundation
| CSR expenditure 3580 3130
{g) Lumax Management Services Private Limited
Services availed (Inclusive of taxes) 7 206
(h) Mr. Roop Salotra
Director Sitting Fees 2.00 1.40
(i) Mr. Milap Jain | |
Director Sitling Fees 2.00| 1.40|
(i) D.K. Jain |
Remuneration of Chairman emeritus 24,00 2400
(k) Comnaglia Metallurgical Products India Private Limited |
Dividend Paid - - ! 222.22| 5
Bal at the year end o -
|Particulars March 31, 2026 March 31, 2024
| Trade payables o | | !
Lumax Tours & Travels Limited 077 490 |
Lumax Auto Technologies Limited i 11213 | 154 08
112.90 158.98
| Trade receivables
Cor-Filters ([taly) 5273 52.88
| 52.73 | 52.38
Other financial liabilities | |
Mr. Roop Salotra | 040 | -
Mr. Milap Jain l 0.40 .
i o | 0.80 | -

There is no loss allowance for receivables in relation to any outstanding balances, and no loss allowance has been recognised during the year in respect of
receivables due from relaled parties
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34 Employee benefits:

A

-~

b)

c)

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the Act, employees who has completed five years of service is entitled to
specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the employee’s length of service and salary at retirement age. The scheme is funded with an
insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance policy

During the year, the Company has recognized the following amounts in the statement of profit and loss :

Define contribution plans

|
3903

[ March31,2025 |  March31,2024 |
!

[ Employer's c&tributiﬂw to provident fund and other fund ) | o 4488 |

Defined Benefit plans ("DBO")

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts
recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

= ‘March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 i
| Gratuity Gratuity |
Cost for the year included under employee benefit
Current service cost 1428 1476
Interest cost 0.48 0.13
Net benefit expense 14.76 | 14.89 |
Amounts recognised in statement of other comprehensive income
March 31, 2026 March 31, 2024 |
|
tui v Gratuity Gratuty |
Opening amount recognised in OCI L (37.35) (34.48)
Remeasurement for the year - Obligation gain 498 | (3.01)
Remeasurement for the year - Plan Assets gain 001 | 0.14
Total remeasurement gain for the year recognised in OCI - 499 |  (2.87)
Closing amount recognised in OCI (32.36) (37.35) |
Mortality table
I March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
| Gratuity ~__ Gratulty
| Economic assumptions
1 Discount rate 6.70% 7.20%
2 Rate of increase in compensation levels 8.00% 8.00%
| 3 Rate of return on plan assets 7.20% 7.50%
Demographic assumptions
1 Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years) 10.49 10.20
2 Retirement Age (years) | 58 years 58 years

| Indian Assured Lives Mortality
| (2012-14) ultimate
| Withdrawal Rate |

3 Mortality Rate

1 upto 30 years | 8.00% | 8.00%
2 Ages from 31-40 i 8.00% 8.00%
3 Ages from 41-50 8.00% | 8.00%
4 Above 50 years | 8.00% | 8.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors,

such as supply and demand in the employment market,
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d) Net (assets) / liabilities recognized in the Balance Sheet and experience adjustments on actuarial gain / (loss) for defined benefit obligation
and plan assets

T

March 31, 2025

Benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year

Transfer in/(out)
Current service cost
Interest cost

Benefit paid
Actuarial loss/(gain)

Benefit abligation as at the end of the year

March 31, 2024 “

46.45 | 34.66 |
14.28 14.76 |
335 251
- (247) |
498 (3.01)
69.06 46.45

e) Table showing changes in the fair value of plan assets:

March 31, 2025 l

|
March 31, 2024

Opening fair value of plan assets 39.41 26.01
Interest Income 2.86 2.38
Contribution made during the year 0.65 13.18
Benefits paid - (1.75)|
Morality charges (0.32) (0.27)
Actuarial gain on plan assets (0_01)| (O.14)|
|
Closing fair Value of Plan asset 42.59 | 39.41 |
f) Benefit (asset) / liability:
' |
i March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024 J
f * |
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation( "DBO") 69.06 | 46.45 |
Fair value of plan assets 42.59 3941 |
Net liability 26.47 7.04
Current 26.47 704 |
Non-current . 3
Total 1 2647 7.04 |
g) Major category of plan assets (as a % of total plan assets)
|
| March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
|
Investment with the insurer 100% 100%
h) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
T March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
= | Gratulty Gratuity
A. Discount rate
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in Discount Rate 63.24 42,63
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in Discount Rate 75.79 50.87
B. Salary escalation rate !
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in Salary Escalation Rate | 74.60 | 50.11
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in Salary Escalation Rate | 63.95 | 43,02
C. Withdrawal rate |
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in Withdrawal rate 68.55 46.24
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in Withdrawal rate 69.63 | 46.69
|
i) The expected benefit payments in future years is as follows:
[ Particulars 5 3 = = March 31,2026 |  March 31,2024 |
’» Within next 1 year 3.41 | 1.94 |
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35 Commitments and contingencies
a) Capital and other commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:
Capital commitments are INR 44 60 Lakhs (As at March 31, 2024 INR 53,61 Lakhs), net of advances
(b) Contingent liabilities
Claims agains! the Company not acknowledged as debt: _— — —_ -
Particulars I March 31,2025 | March 31,2024 ]
= Ll o = =St EEE TR S S = e SRR S S SNCERSS e
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
Income tax [Refer Note (a) below] 23.39
Goods & Service tax {Refer Note (b) below] 54 51 1679
Total - . 54.51 40.18

(a)

(b)

Contingent liabilities comprise:

The Company had received order under Section 143(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for A ¥ 2021-22 from the Income Tax department making addition of income of INR 92 95 lakhs (Tax
under dspute: 23 39 lakhs) u/s 41(1) dated October 25, 2022 The Company filed an appeal with the Ld Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) against the said demand challenging the
additions made. The Ld. Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) vide order dated January 31, 2025 allowed the appeal of the assessee company and deleted the addition of INR 92 95
lakhs

On March 15, 2025, the Deputy Commissioner of Income tax passed an order giving effect to order passed by the Ld CIT(A) stating that no refund was receivable by the Company for the
| AY 2023-24 However, it was observed by the Company that the refund for the AY 2023-24 was erroneously adjusted against the impugned demand for AY 2021-22. The Company has
filad a rectification application u/s 154 of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(/) The Company has received a Show Cause Notice in the previous year dated November 14, 2022 from Goods and Service Tax Department based on the aliegations that iTC cannot be
?c.ralrned upon the service of transportation of employees for the period August 2017 to February 2020. An order in original was issued dated March 23, 2023 by the Superindent, Central
Tax, confirming the demand of INR 16 80lacs and penalty of INR16 80 lacs (excluding interest) The Company has filed an appeal before the Additional Commissioner Appeals on June
15, 2023 against the dispuled amount

|(if) The Company received a show cause notice dated November 14, 2022 from the Assistant Commissioner of Central GST on grounds that the Company has claimed ineligible ITC in
\respect of suppliers who have failed to deposit the GST to the government, resulting in an overall tax liability of INR 20 91lacs. The Company submitted their reply to show cause notice
|before the adjudicating authority on July 25, 2023 An order in original was passed by the Superintendent, Central Tax dropping the proceedings under the said show cause notice on July !
131, 2023 On April 25,2024, the Assistant Comissioner of Cenlral Tax has filed an appeal on behalf of the department before the Additional Joint Commissioner (Appeals) against the
-aloresaid order in original dated July 31, 2023
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36 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

a)

b)

<)

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assels and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods

Judgements
in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in Lhe
financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company applied the following judgments that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers:

« Determining method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint

Certain contracts for the sale of products include a right of price revision on account of change of commodity prices/purchase price that give rise to variable consideration. In estimaling
the variable consideration, the Company is required to use either the expected value method or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounis of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are descrnbed below The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Company Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur

Property, plant and equipment
The useful lives and residual vaiues of property, plant and equipment are determined by the management based on technical assessment by ihe management. The Company believes
that the denved useful life best represents the period over which the Company expects to use these assets.

Fair value measurement of financial instrument

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair vaiue is measured
using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility Changes in assumptions
about these faclors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments

Lease incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit In the lease, therefore its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liability. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Company would have to pay to borrow over similar term, and with a similar security, the fund necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the Right-of-use assets in as similar
economic environments. The IBR therefore effects what the Company "would have to pay” which requires estimates when no observable rates are available or when they need to be
adjusted to reflect the term and conditions of the lease The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs such as market interest rates when available
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37 Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, all equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants, if any. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company reviews the fund management at regular intervals and take
necessary actions to maintain the requisite capital structure.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net
debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for

managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024 '|
Tolal Borrowings (refer note 17 & 18) 3,722.05 3,579.57
iLess: cash and cash equivalents (restricted to total debts) 184.01 | 52422
Net debts (A) 3,538.04 3,055.35
Capital components
Equity Share capital (refer note 15) 683.76 683.76
Other equity (refer note 16) 7,932.74 6,604.03 |
| Total equity (B) 8,616.50 7,287.79
|Capital and net debt (C) = (A+B) 12,154.54 10,343.14
| :
|Gearing ratio (%) (A)/ (C) 29.11%| 29.54%)|
38 Fair values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments:
a) Fair value of financial assets:
i Carrying values Fair values |
i i — | |
| March 31, 2025 ‘ March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 |
== E———— —3 = = = {
Financial assets measured at amortised cost ) ) ]
Investment 1,976.63 - 1,976.63 -
Trade receivables 2,255.43 1,470.86 2,255.43 1,470.86
Cash and cash equivalents 184.01 52422 184.01 524.22
Other Bank balances - 1,100.00 - 1,100.00
Loans 8.08 0.93 8.08 0.93
Other financial assets 659.06 314.37 659.06 314.37
Total 5,083.21 3,410.38 5,083.21 3,410.38
b) Fair value of financial liabilities: - }
| Carrying values Fair values |

| March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
'Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost |
Borrowings 8,01 99,93 8.01 | 99.93

Lease liabilities 3,714.04 | 3,479.64 3,714.04 | 3,479.64
Trade payables | 2,438.65 | 2,144.35 2,438.65 | 2,144.35
|Other financial liabilities | 134.74 | 445,13 | 134.74 | 445.13 |
| Total 6,295.44 | 6,169.05 | 6,295.44 | 6,169.05

Discount rate used in determining fair value

The interest rate used to discount estimated future cash flows, where applicable, are based on the incremental borrowing rate of borrower
which in case of financial liabilities is average market cost of borrowings of the Company and in case of financial asset is the average market
rate of similar credit rated instrument. The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the
best and most relevant data available.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
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39 Fair value hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement are observable, either directly or

indirectly

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input which has a significant effect on the fair value measurement is not based on observable

market data

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities

(a) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2025:
= [ =~ | Quoted Significant _ Significant
Total | prices in observable l unobservable
(Carrying value) active markets inputs inputs
| ‘ (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) l
Financial assets
Investments in Mutual funds 1,976.63 1,976.63 -
Trade receivables 2,255.43 2,255.43
Cash and cash equivalents 184.01 | - 184.01
|Other Bank balances - -
|Loans 7.82 - 7.82
Other financial assets 659.06 - 659.06
| Total 5,082.95 | 1,976.63 3,106.32
(b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities as at March 31, 2025:
| Quoted | Significant Significant |
prices in I observable unobservable |
Total active markets inputs inputs
(Carrying value) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
| ]
|
IBorrowings 8.01 - o= 8.01 |
Lease liabilities 3,714.04 | - 3,714.04
Trade payables 2,438.65 - - 2,438.65
Other financial liabilities 134 74 - - 134.74
Total 6,295.44 - 6,295.44
(c) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2024:
' ~ Quoted Significant Significant |
| Total prices in observable unobservable
(Carrying value) active markets inputs inputs
| (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(Trade receivables 1,470.86 | - 1,470.86 |
Cash and cash equivalents 524.22 - | 524,22
Other bank balance 1,100.00 - 1,100.00
Loans 0.93 - ! 0.93
Other financial assets 314.37 | 314.37
|Total | 3,410.38 | - | - 3,410.38
[Total (A+B) | T T
(d) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities as at March 31, 2024:
= il E T ST s Quoted prices in Significant Significant
[ Total active markets observable unobservable
(Carrying value) (Level 1) inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3)
Borrowings _i_ '  99.93 o 5 - T 99,93 |
Lease liabilities 3,479.64 - 3,479.64
Trade payables 2,144.35 - 2,144.35
Other financial liabilities 445.13 - 445.13
Total 6,169.05 w | 6,169.05

2 e Chirterogs
gy

ve been no transferes between Level 1 & 2 during the year ended March 31, 2025
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40 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, Aging analysis Diversification of bank deposits, credit limits
trade receivables, financial Credit ratings and letters of credit

assets measured at fair value
through profit and loss

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities |Rolling cash flow Availability of committed credit lines and
forecasts borrowing facilities

Market risk - foreign Recognised financial assets Cash flow forecasting Foreign currency forwards

exchange and liabilities not denominated |Sensitivity analysis Foreign currency options

in Indian rupee (INR)

Market risk - Interest Long term borrowings at Sensitivity analysis Interest rate swaps
Rate variable rate

A. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, price risk and currency risk. Financial instrument effected by market risk include loans,
borrowings, and deposits

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company's interest bearing financial liabilities includes borrowings with fixed interest rates.

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost, They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107,
since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates

Interest rate risk exposure

The Company's variable rate borrowing is subject to interest rate fluctuations. Below is the overall exposure of the borrowing:

;Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 !
3 |
|Variable rate borrowing - 7472
Fixed rate borrowing 8.01 25.21
Total borrowings 8.01 99.93
Sensitivity

Profit or loss and equity is sensitive to higher/ (lower) interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates

|Particulars : March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest sens_itivity 1
Increase by 1% (31 March 2025: 1%) - 0.75

| Decrease by 1% (31 March 2025: 1%) - (0.75)

ii)  Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue
or expense is denominated in a foreign currency)

The Company transacts business in local currency as well as in foreign currency. The Company has foreign currency trade payables and
receivables and is therefore, exposed to foreign exchange risk.
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iii)

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.
The impact on the Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities,

_[ ~ March 31, 2025 I March 31, 2024

Exposure gaini/(loss L S s
P gaini{ ) | Change +6% , Change Change +5% | Change
|

| | 5%

-
|
-
|
|

| , | 5%
Trade Payable I T a4 (11.46) 11.46
Trade Receivable (3.85) 385 | 567 | (5.67)

The Company's exposure to price risk arises from investments held by the Company and classified in the balance sheet as fair value through
profit or loss (refer note 7)

To manage its price risk arising from investments in mutual funds, the Company diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in
accordance with the limits set by the Company

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss
The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits
with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly
monitored.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor
receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of financial assets (trade receivable)

Further, the Company's customer base majorly includes Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs), Large Corporates and Tier-1 vendors of
OEMs. Based on the past trend of recoverability of outstanding trade receivables, the Company has not incurred material losses on account of
credit impairment. Hence, no adjustment has been made on account of Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring
unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and coliateral requirements.
The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing
including loans from banks at an optimised cost.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

: . : 3 .
March 31, 2025 l On Demand |l Les;et.::n 4 1to 5 years ! > b6 years I Total E
— | | [
|Borrowings | - | 7.75 | 0.26 - 8.01 |
Trade and other payables - 2,438 65 | - - 2,438.65
Other financial liabilities - 134.74 - | - 134.74
Lease liabilities | - 625.32 2,666.26 1,660.28 4,951.86
Total | - 3,206.46 | 2,666.52 | 1,660.28 | 7,533.26 |
T | T T T I
|March 31, 2024 On demand Lessthan 1to 5 yearsJ >5years | Total
2 06 S e s e —— | e | o] e MRS
Borrowings = 85.47 14.46 - 99.93 |
ITrade and other payables - 2,144.35 | - | - | 214435
|Other financial liabilities - 44513 - ‘ - 445.13
| [ |
!Lease liabilities - 530.64 | 2,275.72 1,839.77/ 4,646.13 |
| Total | - 3.205.59 | 2,290.18 | 1.839.77 | 7,335.54 |

Commodity risk

The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities. Its operating activities require the ongoing purchases of steel & Plastic
granuals which are volatile products and are major component of end product. The prices in these purchase contracts are linked to the price of
raw steel & plastic grannuals and demand supply matrix. However, at present, the Company do not hedge its raw material procurements, as the
price of the final product of the Company also vary with the price of underlying commodity which mitigate the risk of price volatility.
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41 Ratios analysis
[ T ——— i = T T o
| | |
i As atifor the year As atffor the year | | | J
|Particulars | ended March 31, 2025 | ended March 31, 2024 % Change Reason for varlance (>+-25%) [
(a) Current Ratio, T . T {es | 449 | 269, Increase due to investment in mutual funds |
Current Assets 5917.07 4795.03 and increase in trade receivables
Current Liabifity 3,133.84 3,212686
| .
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio, 0.43 0.49 -12% Not Applicable
Total Debt + Lease Liabilities 3,722.05 3,579.57 |
Shareholder's Equity 8,616.50 7.287.79 |
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio, 4.53 | 3.25 40% Majorly due to increase in Profits
Profit after tax + Interest + Depreciation 312177 2,413 24
Principal repayment + Interest payments + Lease paymenls 68869 743867
(d) Return on Equity Ratio, 0.22 | 0.19 17% Not Applicable
Profit afler tax 1,776.88 | 1,266 58
Average Shareholder's Equity 7,952.15 6,653 43
(e) Inventory turnover ratio, 7.95 675 18% Not Applicable
Cost of goods sold 9,992 56 9,557 23
Average Inventory 1,256 88 1,414 89
1 .
{f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio, 8.98 9.24 -3% Not Applicable
Sales 16,723.47 15,732 81 ‘
Average Trade Receivable 1,863.15 1,703 13
{g) Trade payables turnover ratio, 4.34 4.38 | -11% Not Applicable
Purchase 9,837 .52 9,289.08
Average Trade payable 2,291.50 1,903.42 |
I{h} Net capital turmover ratio, 6.01 994 -40% | Bue to Increase in Working Capital
Sales 16.723 47 15.732.81 (Investments in Mutual fund)
Working Capital 2,78313 1,582.37
(1) Net profit ratio, | 0.11 | 0.08 524 Majorly due to Increase in Net profit
Profit after tax 1,776 68 1,266 58
Revenue from contract with cuslomers | 16,723 47 15,732.81
(i} Return on Capital employed, | 0.22 0.18 19% Mot Applicable
Profit before tax + Interest 269107 1,997 95
Capital employed (Tangible networth +Total Debt(including lease
liabilities) + Deferred tax liability) 12,513 72 11,058 98
(k) Return on investment 0.08 - . |Not Applicable
Retum on investment 2832 -
Weighled average investment 348 56 -
42 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule IlI
(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder
(i) The Company does not have transaclions with struck off companies
(iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,
{iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year
(v} The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any olher person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enlities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
{vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
Company shall;
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b) provide any guaraniee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
(vii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under lhe Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any olher relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)
(viii) The Company has borrowings secured by hypothecation of assets.
{ix) None of the entities in the group have been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution of other lender.
{x) The group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies(Restriction on number of layer) Rules 2017
{xi) The group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year
(xii) The group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year
{xiii) These financial stalements were approved and adopted by the board of directors of the Company in their meeting dated May 12, 2025, and are subject to shareholder.
(xiv) The Company does not own any immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) (Refer
Note 3(a) to lhe financial statements}
{xv) The Company has borrawings from banks and financial institutions on Lhe basis of security of current assets, The quarterly retum or the statements of current assets filed by the Company

with banks and financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts,
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43 The Company's business activity falls within a single business segment i.e. manufacturing and trading of Automotive Components and therefore,

segment reporting in terms of Ind AS 108 on Segmental Reporting is not applicable.

Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date,

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No.: 012754N/N500016
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